
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners
September 26, 2013


 7:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on September 26, 2013 at 7:00 p.m.
in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy Clerk
Dennis Davenport, Interim County Attorney


_______________________________________________________________________________________________
Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Chairman Brown called the September 26, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:05 p.m.


Commissioner Barlow gave a brief presentation on United States Constitution.  As part of his presentation,
Commissioner Barlow explained the precedence of why the Board calls for prayer at the beginning of each meeting. 
Commissioner Barlow then introduced Bishop Rob Richards of the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints, and
he told of Bishop Richards’ work in the Fayette community.  Commissioner Barlow asked Bishop Richards to offer
the invocation, and Bishop Richards did so.  A copy of Commissioner Barlow’s PowerPoint, identified as “Attachment
1", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Commissioner Allen McCarty led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda


Chairman Brown moved to accept the Agenda as published.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Presentation of a donation from “The Go Two Guys” to the Department of Fire and Emergency
Services for the County’s Alternative Teaching Methods Program.







Minutes
September 26, 2013
Page Number 2


Fire Chief David Scarbrough introduced Mr. Rick Ryckeley and thanked him for a donation that will help
further Fire and Emergency Service’s Alternative Teaching Methods Program.  Chief Scarbrough then
introduced two clowns, Biscuit and Butterbean, to the Board as an example of the teaching program and
had them participate in the presentation.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 2", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


2. Presentation of the Government Finance Officers Association Distinguished Budget Award for
Fayette County’s annual budget document for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2012 and ending
June 30, 2013.


County Administrator Steve Rapson introduced Chief Financial Officer Mary Parrott and Budget Officer
Sergio Acevedo to the Board, commented on their work in earning the award, and he congratulated them
on a job well done.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 3", follows these minutes and is made
an official part hereof.


3. Presentation of two Government Finance Officers Association Certificates of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting for both Fayette County’s and the Fayette County’s Water System
Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.


County Administrator Steve Rapson asked for Assistant Chief Financial Officer Sheryl Weinmann to join
Mrs. Parrott and Mr. Acevedo, and he spoke about the importance of the two CAFR awards.  A copy of this
request, identified as “Attachment 4", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


4. Proclamation recognizing Promise Place and their 5k “Run From Domestic Violence” Run.


Commissioner Oddo read the proclamation recognizing Promise Place and their 5k “Run from Domestic
Violence” Run.  Ms. Catherine Sanderson, who represented Promise Place, gave a PowerPoint
presentation on Promise Place’s history and service in the Fayette community. Copies of the request and
Ms. Sanderson’s PowerPoint presentation, identified as “Attachment 5", follow these minutes and are made
an official part hereof.


5. Recognition of Fayette County’s residents who are celebrating milestone Wedding Anniversaries.


Chairman Brown and the Board recognized the following couples and their milestone Wedding
Anniversaries:


• Mr. and Mrs. Claude and Janet Paquin–50th Wedding Anniversary.  A copy of Mr. and Mrs.
Paquin’s recognition, identified as “Attachment 6", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.


• Mr. and Mrs. Jim and Lois Richter–50th Wedding Anniversary.  A copy of Mr. and Mrs. Richter’s
recognition, identified as “Attachment 7", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


• Mr. and Mrs. Darrell and Teresa Newby–50th Wedding Anniversary.  A copy of Mr. and Mrs.
Newby’s recognition, identified as “Attachment 8", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.







Minutes
September 26, 2013
Page Number 3


• Mr. and Mrs. Will Rogers– 52nd Wedding Anniversary.  A copy of Mr. and Mrs. Roger’s recognition,
identified as “Attachment 9", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


• Mr. and Mrs. Bill and Nancy Jones–60th Wedding Anniversary.  A copy of Mr. and Mrs. Jones’
recognition, identified as “Attachment 10", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


• Mr. and Mrs. Russell E. (Bob) and Louise Bennett–65th Wedding Anniversary.  A copy of Mr. and
Mrs. Bennett’s recognition, identified as “Attachment 11", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.


Copies of the request and master recognition which was read into the record by Chairman Brown, identified
as “Attachment 12", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC HEARING:


6. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-13 amending the Fayette County
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as amended, specifically Article IX
(Zoning Board of Appeals); to provide for severability; to repeal conflicting laws, ordinances, and
resolutions; to provide an effective date; and for other purposes allowed by law.


Community Development Director Pete Frisina reminded the Board that this issue had been talked about
many times in previous meetings, that it pertained to the variance procedure that has been developed for
illegal lots, and that it was a mechanism to legitimize some of the illegal lots based on certain criteria.  He
mentioned that the variance procedure would go before the Zoning Board of Appeals.  Mr. Frisina explained
that this recommendation would replace the “Legal Non-conforming” status that was passed in 2012, and
he explained that this recommendation sets additional criteria for lots that have been made illegal.  He said
that these illegal lots, through many years, have been owned by many individuals and that often the person
who finds out that the lot is illegal had nothing to do with its illegal status.  He told the Board that this
recommendation, in addition to the criteria required by the Zoning Board of Appeals, sets three additional
criteria:


1) That the transaction giving the ownership of the property requires that the applicants own the
property for at least five (5) years, and that the lot be made illegal at least ten (10) years prior to
that.  He told the Board that the County did not want to create an avenue for people to create
illegal lots and turn them over, and that the time frames were required in order to discourage
people from creating illegal lots.


2) If the person who owns the illegal lot acquired the lot from an immediate family member who was
the person who created the illegal lot, that would be a criteria against getting a variance.


3) If there is available land around the illegal lot that could bring the illegal lot into compliance that
would be another issue to be dealt with and a variance could not be granted.


Chairman Brown clarified that, if someone had devious thoughts and said “I’m going to buy this property
and subdivide it, create some lots, and ask for forgiveness right after I do this,” they would not qualify for a
variance.  Mr. Frisina replied that a variance would not be applicable in that case.







Minutes
September 26, 2013
Page Number 4


Commissioner Barlow acknowledged that this issue had been heard in the Planning Commission meetings,
and he asked what the consensus was from the Planning Commission.  Mr. Frisina replied that both the
Planning Commission and the Zoning Board of Appeals have reviewed all the criteria and both bodies are
in favor of the recommendations.  Commissioner Barlow asked Mr. Frisina where he personally stood on
the issue.  Mr. Frisina replied that he was in favor of the recommendations.


Commissioner Oddo commented that Mr. Frisina, the Planning Commission, Planning and Zoning Staff,
and Interim County Attorney Dennis Davenport had worked very hard on the recommendations, and that he
appreciated all the hard work they did for Fayette County.


Brenda Moody: Mrs. Moody spoke in favor of adopting Ordinance 2013-13.  She said she was
overwhelmed that this issue was being considered by the Board, and she stated that if the Ordinance was
approved that it would give her peace of mind.  She said the thought of her house burning down and not
being able to rebuild it has been overwhelming, and she was thankful to the Board for “working so hard for
my family and this county.”  She said if the Ordinance passed that it would bring joy to her whole family,
and that they were going to have a party, and that the Board was invited.  Mrs. Moody told the Board that “it
has been a hard road,” and that she was thankful that the Board was making it so that others could not put
people into bad situations and get away with it.  She said the Board was amazing and that people do not
give them the respect they deserve.  She told the Board that they deserve awards as well, and she thanked
the Board from the bottom of her heart for putting so much effort into “our lives and what we’ve put our life
into in this county.”  She explained that her husband is a firefighter for Fayette County and that she is a
special needs bus driver for Fayette County, and that their hearts are for Fayette County.  She said she
appreciated the work and effort the Board does for all the people, and that she would vote for all of the
Board members.


Chairman Brown reminded the Board and the audience  that the Moody’s purchased property that they did
not know was a nonconforming lot.  He explained that because the lot is nonconforming, it put them in a
position where they could not get homeowners’ insurance to safeguard their property and the persons living
in the house.  He said this endeavor started when the County found out about their situation.  He said Mr.
and Mrs. Moody are doing a great job, that they both work for the County, and that the Board really
appreciates them.


No one else spoke in favor of or in opposition to this recommendation.


Commissioner Ognio moved to approve staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-13 amending the
Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as amended, specifically Article
IX (Zoning Board of Appeals); to provide for severability, to repeal conflicting laws, ordinances, and
resolutions; to provide an effective date; for other purposes allowed by law.  Commissioner Barlow
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  Copies of the request
and Ordinance 2013-13, identified as “Attachment 13", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


No one spoke during the Public Comment portion of the meeting.







Minutes
September 26, 2013
Page Number 5


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Barlow moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 7-14.  Commissioners Ognio and McCarty
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


7. Approval of IPN USA’s request for approval of a Tax Exempt Industrial Revenue Bond and use of the
proceeds as specified by applicable tax code requirements.


Emily Poole: Ms. Poole, representing the Fayette County Development Authority, spoke to the Board
about this request and she explained that IPN USA is one of Fayette County’s corporate citizens that are
located in Peachtree City.  She told the Board that IPN USA is a tremendously successful company that
makes plastic components for food packaging, and that their products are used across the world.  She told
the Board that the bond was for material and equipment in the amount of approximately ten million dollars.


Chairman Brown told Ms. Poole and Mr. Paul Edwin van den Hoonaard, representing IPN USA, that he had
toured the IPN USA plant, and he acknowledged that they have a magnificent operation that exceeds every
standard in the country for doing “that type of production.”  He said he looked forward to going to the
grocery store and other stores and seeing the products.  Chairman Brown explained that IPN USA makes
the applications for opening the containers for baby food and various drinks.  He said it was great to see
IPN USA’s products on shelves throughout the grocery store.  He wished Mr. Hoonaard much success in
the future and he asked him to stay in contact with the Board and keep them appraised of how the Board
can be of service in the future.  Copies of the request and supporting documents, identified as “Attachment
14", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


8. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt Resolution 2013-19 relating to the issuance of a 2013
General Obligation Bond for the purpose of advance refunding of the School Board’s 2005 and 2007
General Obligation Bonds, and to provide a present value of approximately $2,637,000.00 savings
for the taxpayers of Fayette County.  Copies of the request and Resolution 2013-19, identified as
“Attachment 15", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


9. Approval of staff’s recommendation for a final supplemental budget adjustment for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2013.


Chairman Brown informed the audience that the Board had additional documents on the dais related to
Consent Agenda Item #9, and that the additional information could be obtained from the County Clerk.  He
further explained that the additional documents included an email from County Administrator Steve Rapson
to the Board titled FY2013 Summary Schedule to Actual Revised, and that the email included several
spreadsheets titled Preliminary - Unaudited for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013.


County Administrator Steve Rapson commented that when there is talk about changing things and having
things on the dais, it tends to make people a little skittish.  He stated that the documents that were
published with the Agenda package on last Friday, that the only change to the documents published in the
Agenda Package were $2,518.00 for adjustments that were made for the Tax Assessors Office.  He
explained that everything else had been published and that the rest of the figures remained the same. 
Copies of the request and additional documents, identified as “Attachment 16", follow these minutes and
are made an official part hereof.







Minutes
September 26, 2013
Page Number 6


10.  Approval of staff’s recommendation to award the McDonough Road Fiber Optic Cabling Project to
the low-bidder, ComTran, in an amount not to exceed $202,300.00, to authorize $43,000.00 in
additional funding for the project, and to authorize the County Manager to sign the contract and
related documents.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 17", follows these minutes and
is made an official part hereof.


11. Approval of staff’s recommendation to approve requested changes to the list of streets identified for
resurfacing in the June 13, 2013 Intergovernmental Agreement between Fayette County and the
Town of Tyrone.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 18", follows these minutes and is
made an official part hereof.


12. Approval of staff’s recommendation to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of
Fairburn for bridge improvements to Bohannon Road over Line Creek (Structure 121-5081-0), and
authorization to utilize $57,430.00 from the Road Department Asphalt and Tack (Accounting Line #
10040220-531171) if the bridge improvements begin in Fiscal Year 2014.  Copies of the request and
Intergovernmental Agreement, identified as “Attachment 19", follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.


13. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award a contract to Gullett Sanitation Services, Inc., in the
amount of $165,000, for dredging the two lagoons at Crosstown Water Treatment Plant, to establish
a budget for this purpose, to transfer funds from the Renewal and Extension account, and to
authorize the Chairman to execute said contract and related documents.


Commissioner Ognio asked County Administrator Steve Rapson to clarify Consent Agenda Item #13.  Mr.
Rapson replied that the County was moving money from the Renewal and Extension Fund.  He explained
how the Renewal and Extension account is funded, and he said this request was simply to move the money
from the Renewal and Extension account to a Capital Project so that the County can move forward with
dredging.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 20", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.


14. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to close McIntosh Lake, McIntosh Park, and
the access road to McIntosh Park from Friday, October 11, 2013 at 3:00 p.m. until Sunday, October
13, 2013 at 6:00 p.m. for the upcoming Great Georgia Airshow.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 21", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


OLD BUSINESS:


15. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to enter into a revised Intergovernmental Agreement for
the Use and Distribution of Proceeds from the 2013 Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax for
Capital Outlay Projects.


County Administrator Steve Rapson said this Intergovernmental Agreement was basically the same
Intergovernmental Agreement for the Use and Distribution of Proceeds from the 2013 Special Purpose
Local Option Sales Tax for Capital Outlay Projects, and he explained that the only amendment was a
change to the Intergovernmental Agreement made by the City of Peachtree City.  He said this request was
simply to ratify the agreement with those amendments in order to ensure that everyone is on the same
page.







Minutes
September 26, 2013
Page Number 7


Interim County Attorney Dennis Davenport added that the projects were changed, but not the agreement
itself.  Mr. Rapson agreed, saying the substance of the agreement was the same but that the attachment
had changed.  Chairman Brown clarified that the Board’s vote was to acknowledge that there was a new list
from Peachtree City that is to be used for the city’s SPLOST projects.  Both Mr. Rapson and Mr. Davenport
agreed with that understanding. 


Commissioner Oddo moved to approve staff’s recommendation to enter into a revised Intergovernmental
Agreement for the Use and Distribution of Proceeds from the 2013 Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax
for Capital Outlay Projects.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The
motion passed unanimously.  Copies of the request and revised Intergovernmental Agreement, identified as
“Attachment 22", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


16. Discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning
Ordinance, Article VI, Sec. 6-22. M-1 Light Industrial District and Sec. 6-23. M-2 Manufacturing and
Heavy Industrial District, regarding Building Height.


Chairman Brown informed the audience that the Board had an additional document on the dais, and that it
was a letter dated September 25, 2013 to County Clerk Floyd Jones from Mr. Jim McBride of JMX Services,
Incorporated.  He said a photograph was attached to the letter.


Community Development Director Pete Frisina reminded the Board that much discussion had recently
taken place concerning building height, and that the currently proposed amendments related to the initial
discussions.  He said staff has worked on building heights for movie studios, for churches, and for vaulted
ceilings.  He said that during the previous discussions, he had informed the Board that there would likely be
other things that staff would be working on in order to address other height issues, and that these proposals
were a response to those “other things.”  He told the Board that staff has talked to the Planning
Commission, and that staff believes the proposed amendments are a logical move in an industrial district,
to allow a higher building than would be allowed in a residential district.  Mr. Frisina explained that staff was
proposing raising the height in both the M-1 Light Industrial District and the M-2 Manufacturing and Heavy
Industrial District from 35' to 50', and he told the Board that Fayetteville already has a height of 60' in their
industrial zonings.  He told the Board that Peachtree City does not have a height light limit for industrial
zonings.  Mr. Frisina explained that currently in Fayette County there are two zoning districts, a Business-
Technology Park and an Office-Institutional district, where their heights can be 40 feet.  He informed the
Board that both the M-1 and M-2 Zoning Districts have the largest buffers of any of the County’s
nonresidential zoning districts, so any residential zoning that abuts the M-1 and M-2 zoning districts would
have a 75-foot buffer with an additional 25-foot setback; meaning that any building in an M-1 or M-2 zoning
would be, at a minimum, 100' away from any residential property.  Mr. Frisina referred to Mr. McBride’s
letter, and he said Mr. McBride had brought this issue to the forefront with a building that he is trying to
build.  He said the County was trying to work with him so that he could go ahead and build his building
probably sometime next year.


Mr. Frisina pointed out that in both the months of November and December; the County loses Board of
Commissioners meetings due to the holiday schedule.  He said he spoke to the County Clerk, and he said if
staff could get the Board’s permission to advertise the proposed amendments, get them to the Planning
Commission for a public hearing, that the proposed amendments could have a quick turnaround and get
them on the next Board meeting.  Mr. Frisina added that he would have another issue that was unrelated to
this matter, pertaining to the redevelopment of a large parcel within the County for a camp, and that parcel







Minutes
September 26, 2013
Page Number 8


has a cell tower in the middle of the property.  He said staff wants to put something in the County Ordinance
that allows the County to work with the property owner in an effort to revise the site plan for that property
and to move the cell tower to a different location.  He said he wanted to set time limits on how long it would
take to move the tower to a different location and to take the existing tower down.  He explained that this
issue would be mainly a housekeeping effort, but it would allow something to be in place that sets a
deadline for the work to be completed since, as some point, there will be two cell towers on the property. 
Mr. Frisina said staff was looking at about a 108-day period of time, or approximately four months, to get all
the equipment moved, get the new tower built, and to take down the existing tower. The Board agreed with
Mr. Frisina’s request to put all of these changes into one amendment and to handle them all quickly.  The
Board did not object to Mr. Frisina’s request.


The Board directed staff to move forward with public hearings for the proposed amendments.  The Board
took no action on this item.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 23", follows these minutes and
is made an official part hereof.


NEW BUSINESS:


17. Presentation by the Georgia Department of Transportation concerning the department’s project to
widen McDonough Road. 


Public Works Director Phil Mallon introduced Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) Board Member
Dana Lemon, who represents the 13th Congressional District, and he introduced Georgia Department of
Transportation Project Manager Jeremy Busby to the Board.  Mr. Mallon explained that the GDOT project
was a very large project, and that it would have substantial impact on many of Fayette County’s facilities as
well as future transportation projects.  He said this presentation was for the Board’s information only and
that shortly after the meeting he would provide each Commissioner a draft set of comments to be officially
submitted to the GDOT.  He thanked Ms. Lemon and Mr. Busby for taking their time to come to the
meeting, and he told the Board that they have sat through many public meetings concerning this project. 
He told the Board and audience that there is a drawing showing the proposed project, that the drawing was
in back of the room, and that he would stay until after the meeting to talk to the citizens about the project.


Representative Lemon thanked the Board and county staff for always being willing to work with the GDOT. 
She agreed that this is a significant project, but she pointed out that this is a proposed project–and that part
of the process was to get feedback from the Board and the citizens.  She emphasized that feedback is
critical not only for this project but for all of GDOT’s projects and she thanked the Board for allowing them to
come and for feedback.   She said if the GDOT could do anything to support transportation and economic
development in the Fayette County community that the GDOT looked forward to the opportunity to help and
serve.


GDOT Project Manager Jeremy Busby gave a PowerPoint presentation concerning the GDOT’s proposed
project to widen McDonough Road.  He said the project was intended to be about six-miles long and that it
would stretch from State Route 54 in Fayette County to Tara Boulevard in Clayton County.  He said the
reasons for the proposed widening of McDonough Road were: 1) safety since the geometry of the current
road is substandard for the speed and amount of cars on the road, and 2) due to projection for traffic to
increase on McDonough Road and the widening will address both current and future congestion.  He told
the Board that the GDOT was proposing widening McDonough Road from two lanes to four lanes, and that
it would have a concrete, raised median that would be about twenty feet wide, and that it would have







Minutes
September 26, 2013
Page Number 9


bicycle lanes in both directions with sidewalks, and that it would have three additional traffic signals.  He
said the work would also replace the bridges at the Flint River and Hurricane Creek.  He said the GDOT is
in the information gathering process for this proposed project, and that the GDOT was conducting utility
studies to determine what utilities are currently on the corridor.  He said the GDOT was also making right-
of-way determinations and was trying to reduce impact as much as possible.  He clarified that although the
GDOT is looking at right-of-ways, there have been no requisitions at this point in time.  He added that the
GDOT is also working through environmental studies, historical studies, and that there are schools and
churches that have environmental protections, that there is a historic farm, and that there is a historic
cemetery from the Civil War.  Mr. Busby said the GDOT held a public meeting in the month of July where
the project was presented at a local public high school, and that the GDOT did additional outreach
throughout the community.  He said 199 people attended the outreach and that the GDOT received 107
comments that are currently being reviewed.  He said the GDOT will prepare responses to all of the
comments it had received, that right-of-way activities should begin as early as 2016, and that the widening
project would potentially begin in 2019.  


Chairman Brown said Fayette County always appreciated working with its neighboring districts and
counties, and he pointed out that Fayette County is involved with the Interstate 85 and State Route 74.  He
said the south side of metro Atlanta has realized that “we are all in this together and we’ve got to pull for
each other” since “we’re competing with gigantic counties on the north side.”  Chairman Brown pointed out
that Fayette County has a lot of infrastructures near the intersection of State Route 54 and McDonough
Road.  He explained that the County has a huge recreational complex in the area, and at the County’s
Public Works facilities and the Water System were located along McDonough Road.  He told Mr. Busby that
one major concern is that the Public Works facility is near the intersection of State Route 54 and
McDonough Road, and that it appeared that the current plans called for making a right-hand turn out of the
facility and the U-turn to get back to State Route 54.  He told Mr. Busby that the trucks that would have to
make the U-turn are dump trucks, large trucks carrying large trailers with large pieces of equipment and
machinery, and similar-type vehicles, and he said the Board was really worried about not having the
capacity to make a U-turn with that type of equipment.  He said the County would like to work with the
GDOT in exploring the possibility of having an extension road that could take these vehicles to the next
logical intersection so that the vehicles could make a legitimate left-hand turn.  He said that would keep the
County from damaging equipment and possibly harming someone in the process.    Chairman Brown also
pointed out the County was concerned about access to the ball fields, and that there should be some type
of logical entry to the fields so that the families can get in and out of that recreation area.  He asked the
GDOT to work with the County to help figure out how to get kids in and out of the recreation area. 
Chairman Brown informed the GDOT that Fayette County is starting an initiative for multi-use paths, in lieu
of sidewalks, and that it this project would be a great potential corridor for multi-use paths since there are
recreation facilities in the area.  He thought it would be a good idea for GDOT to look into constructing a
multi-use path and a box culvert that could be used to access the ball fields.  He concluded that those
would be some of the top issues Fayette County would like for the GDOT to work with.


Commissioner Barlow acknowledged that he has not been involved with the relocation of a cemetery, and
he asked how that issue would be resolved.  Mr. Busby replied that the cemetery would not be relocated,
but that the GDOT was looking for ways to avoid the cemetery.







Minutes
September 26, 2013
Page Number 10


Commissioner Ognio said he was really concerned about the parks along McDonough Road and being able
to get in and out of the parks.  He explained that he saw there were potential problems with the plans as
they are currently proposed, and that there could be safety issues with people making U-turns in an effort to
get to the park.  Mr. Busby recognized Commissioner Ognio’s concerns, and briefly spoke about ways the
concerns could be addressed.  


The Board thanked Mr. Busby and Representative Lemon for coming to them on this proposed project.  The
Board gave no direction and took no action in this matter.  Copies of the request and PowerPoint
presentation, identified as “Attachment 24", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


18. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-12 amending the Code of
Ordinances for Fayette County, Georgia; to enact provisions pertaining to registration of vacant or
foreclosed real property; to provide an effective date, to repeal conflicting ordinances; to provide for
severability, to promote the public health, safety and welfare, and for other purposes.


Community Service Director Pete Frisina said this recommendation was a procedure that was rectified in
State law, and it set standards for how communities set up registries for vacant and foreclosed properties. 
He reminded the Board that Fayette County has had a lot of vacant and foreclosed properties over the past
years, and that they can cause property maintenance issues that are very difficult to resolve.  He said many
times the County cannot find the owners of the properties.  He said this Ordinance would require property
owners to register with the County and to maintain a registry, and he said it would give the County the
ability to enforce County ordinances much better.  Mr. Frisina acknowledged that the hard part would be to
get the property owners to register their properties, but that there are penalties involved for those who do
not register.  He explained that the state has directed that the fee could not be more than $100 per
registrant, and he suggested that Fayette County set the fee at the $100 maximum.  He explained that staff
would have to take the applications, maintain them, check on them, and keep up with the properties when
they come out of foreclosure.  He concluded that the work would involve a lot of staff time since it would
entail creating a database and writing letters to industries telling them to submit their properties.


Commissioner Ognio asked if there were penalties involved if a property was not registered.  Mr. Frisina
replied that there were penalties, and that the penalties were not to exceed $1,000.00.


Commissioner Barlow moved to accept staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-12 amending the
Code of Ordinances for Fayette County, Georgia; to enact provisions pertaining to registration of vacant or
foreclosed real property; to provide an effective date, to repeal conflicting ordinances; to provide for
severability, to promote the public health, safety and welfare, and for other purposes.  Commissioners
McCarty and Oddo seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


County Administrator Steve Rapson asked the Board to hold a second vote establishing the fee at $100.00.


Chairman Brown moved to establish a fee at $100.00.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  Copies of the request and Ordinance 2013-12,
identified as “Attachment 25", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.







Minutes
September 26, 2013
Page Number 11


19. Consideration of staff’s request to award the bid for Fire Station No. 3 construction to Ward General
Contractors, Incorporated.


Fire Chief David Scarbrough asked the Board to consider awarding the bid for Fire Station No. 3.  He
explained that the current fire station is located at 935 Senoia Road, in Tyrone, and he hoped the station
would become an old site.  He told the Board that the current station was constructed in 1977, that it has
had septic failures, that staff has forced themselves into minimal water usage situations, that staff is not
able to wash clothes and uniforms meaning they have to ship the work out to another fire station, and from
time to time the septic tank has had to be pumped.  Chief Scarbrough continued saying that over the years,
there have been response issues due to the proximity of the railroad track to the fire station.  He explained
that the proposal is to relocate the fire station to Hwy. 74 and Jenkins Road, and he explained that the
station would not have to be on a septic tank since it would have a sewer available to it.  He told the Board
that it would give access to both the northbound and southbound traffic on Highway 74, and that the site
was large enough to accommodate a water tower in the future.  Chief Scarbrough stated that the
Purchasing Department received eleven bids, and that the bids included a base bid and three alternatives
which were brick veneer, a metal roof, and a digital message board.  He stated that staff’s recommendation
was to award the contract to Ward General Contractors, Incorporated, who is the low bidder.  He explained
that their base bid was $1,740,000 with brick veneer being $12,000, and the alternative metal roof was
$50,000 for a total of $1,802,000.00.  He asked for the Board’s approval to move forward with the project. 
He concluded his request by saying this project has taken years in the making, and it has taken much
longer than anyone ever anticipated.  He added that the County already has an architect, and that the
architect has worked with Ward General Contractors in the past.


Chairman Brown asked if Ward General Contractors had built fire stations in the past.  Chief Scarbrough
replied that they have built fire stations for other jurisdictions, and that their work appeared to be very good.  


Commissioner Barlow moved to approve staff’s request to award the bid for Fire Station No. 3 construction
to Ward General Contractors, Incorporated, in the amount of $1,802,000 and to fund the project utilizing
funding from Project # 0550A in the amount of $1,425,769.40 and $400,000.00 from Project #2930C. 
Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.


Michelle Mills: Ms. Mills, representing Aarene Contracting, Incorporated, stated that her company was the
low bidder of record at the time the bids were read.  She reported that there were no alternates that were
read at the time of the bid opening, and that her company was not aware of any requirements for the
alternates to be part of the overall recommendation or decision.  She said she wanted to voice her concern
about that.  She continued saying that the bid matrix that is on the County’s website only shows the base
bids, and that Aarene Contracting is the low bidder as shown.


County Administrator Steve Rapson replied to Ms. Mill’s concerns saying that as part of the RFP, the
County actually placed the base bid, in addition to the three alternates, which were selected.  He explained
that the alternates that were outlined within the base document stated that the county would actually look at
that as a comprehensive analysis in regards to the base bid as well as which alternates would be picked. 
He told the Board that the only alternate that was not chosen was Alternate #3, but if it had been picked it
would not change the recommendation.  Mr. Rapson pointed out that there were significant differences in 







Minutes
September 26, 2013
Page Number 12


the alternate bids, and he explained that the metal roof was bid by Ward General Contractors in the amount
of $50,000 and Aarene’s bid for the metal roof was $105,000.00.  He said that was the primary, determining
factor as far as why Aarene Contracting, Incorporated was not selected.


The motion to approve staff’s request to award the bid for Fire Station No. 3 construction to Ward General
Contractors, Incorporated, in the amount of $1,802,000 and to fund the project utilizing funding from Project
# 0550A in the amount of $1,425,769.40 and $400,000.00 from Project #2930C passed unanimously.  A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 26", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


20. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to award a contract to CH2M Hill to serve as Engineer of
Record for the Water System as specified in RFP #888, for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014, and
with provisions for two one-year renewals, and for the County Manager to execute said contract and
related documents.


County Administrator Steve Rapson reported that staff went through a comprehensive analysis with regard
to RFP #888 for the Engineer of Record.  He explained there was a mandatory pre-proposal conference
that twenty-four firms attended.  He said the bid opening occurred on August 29, 2013, and an evaluation
committee composed of himself, the Purchasing Director, the Human Resources Director, the Chief
Financial Officer, Mr. Steve Hogan of the Peachtree City Water and Sewerage Authority, and Mr. Brant
Keller from the City of Griffin who is regionally known for water services reviewed the bids.  He told the
Board that the evaluation committee reviewed and scored nine submitted proposals and created a short-list
of three firms: Woodward, Mallett Consulting, and CH2M Hill.  He told the Board that the three firms were
interviewed on September 12, 2013, and based on everyone’s recommendation; the unanimous
recommendation was for CH2M Hill to be the Engineer of Record.


Commissioner McCarty moved to approve New Business #20, consideration of staff’s recommendation to
award a contract to CH2M Hill to serve as Engineer of Record for the Water System as specified in RFP
#888, for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014, and with provisions for two one-year renewals, and for the
County Manager to execute said contract and related documents.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the
motion.


Mr. Rapson clarified that both he and Interim County Attorney Dennis Davenport will be working with CH2M
Hill in regards to developing the contract, and he assured the Board that the rates that they currently have
in their agreement will be adjusted.  He stated that he also requested CH2M Hill to provide him with a first
60-day / 90-day look in regards to helping the County resolve a lot of the issues that have been read about
in the papers.  He told the Board that the County did not want to pay CH2M Hill the standard rate for the
first 90-day period.  He said his thought process was that the County would go ahead and approve the
contract with the revised early rates and also an addendum for the first 90-days.


The motion to approve New Business #20, consideration of staff’s recommendation to award a contract to
CH2M Hill to serve as Engineer of Record for the Water System as specified in RFP #888, for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2014, and with provisions for two one-year renewals, and for the County Manager to
execute said contract and related documents passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 27", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
September 26, 2013
Page Number 13


21. Approval of the September 12, 2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.  Commissioner
McCarty was not present for this meeting.


Commissioner Oddo moved to approve the September 12, 2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes. 
Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0-1 with
Commissioner McCarty abstaining from the vote.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Introduction of Assistant Chief Financial Officer Sheryl Weinmann: County Administrator Steve Rapson
introduced Assistant Chief Financial Officer Sheryl Weinmann to the Board, and he told the Board that he has
named her “Firecracker.”  The Board welcomed her to the Fayette family.


Installation of the Blinds in the Public Meeting Room: County Administrator Steve Rapson reported that the
blinds had been installed in the Public Meeting Room, and that the room “just looks normal now.”  He commented
that the blinds give a much more professional appearance


Asset Management Policy: County Administrator Steve Rapson reported that he gave the Board a copy of the
Asset Management Policy that staff is ready to enact within the next week or so.  Chairman Brown agreed, and he
added that a copy of the policy was on the dais and that it is entitled Fiscal Policy–Asset Management 300.13.  Mr.
Rapson gave kudos to Chief Financial Officer Mary Parrott and Assistant Chief Financial Officer Sheryl Weinmann
who helped draft the policy, and who did an outstanding job in their work.  A copy of the asset management policy,
identified as “Attachment 28", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Legislative Leadership Conference: County Administrator Steve Rapson informed everyone that the Legislative
Leadership Conference was going to occur from September 29-October 1, 2013, and that he and the entire Board
were going to Athens to attend the conference.  


Update on the Sanitary Survey Report: County Administrator Steve Rapson updated the Board on the Sanitary
Survey Report by saying that up through today the County has corrected 50% of the items that were identified in the
deficiency report.  He said he did not want to gloss over that report since staff at the Water System has worked very
hard in making the corrections.  He stated that, in regards to the Environmental Protection Division’s actual final
review, he would meet with the Board on October 10, 2013 concerning “our final pass in regards to our final position
on the Notice of Violations (NOBS).”  He added that the Environmental Protection Division has agreed to receive the
County’s final report on October 11, 2013.


Support Breast Cancer Research: County Administrator Steve Rapson asked Fire Chief David Scarbrough to
address the Board about an effort to support breast cancer research.  Chief Scarbrough told the Board that many
people are aware that the month of October is “Breast Cancer Awareness Month,” and he explained that the fire
personnel will be wearing pink shirts in the first weeks of October.  He said the Fire Department was requesting the
Board to also wear pink shirts in support of breast cancer research.  Each member of the Board then put the pink
shirts on in support of defeating breast cancer.







Minutes
September 26, 2013
Page Number 14


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


Five Items for Executive Session:  Interim County Attorney Dennis Davenport informed the Board that he had two
items of threatened litigation, two items of pending litigation, and review of the September 12, 2013 Executive
Session Minutes to be considered in Executive Session.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner McCarty: Commissioner McCarty told everyone that he had just returned from Europe, and he
wanted everyone to understand what a great privilege it is to live in the United States of America.  He said even
when he landed at the wrong airport it was still good ground to kiss.


Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow thanked staff since they have already worked all day and are still
with the Board at late meetings.  He said he appreciated staff, Chief Financial Officer Mary Parrott, the County Clerk,
and Ms. Tameca White.  He added that it is always a joy to look to the citizens in the audience, and he remembered
how in meetings past there would only be three or four people in the audience.  He liked that the citizens were
coming to the meetings to learn how the process works.


Commissioner Oddo: Commissioner Oddo thanked Fire Chief David Scarbrough for the pink shirts.  He pointed out
that the homecoming for the Vietnam Veterans was upcoming and it would be nice if everyone would attend the
parade for them.  He said he has been thanking the veterans for the past forty years, but this event would be a great
way to show pride in them.  He also thanked the audience for coming to the meetings.


Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio said he had the opportunity to attend the Inman Heritage Day
weekend, and that it was something that just amazed him.  He said Fayette County is considered an oasis, but when
someone attends Heritage Day that person is reminded they are really in metro Atlanta.  He thought it was really
impressive that Fayette County is the way that it is.  He pointed out that a person could even see reporters taking
hay rides, that many people were there, and that it was very impressive.


Chairman Brown: Chairman Brown reminded everyone that the Board and County Administrator Steve Rapson
were going to be in Athens from Sunday until Tuesday, and he asked for prayer for Athens, Georgia.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


Five Items for Executive Session: Chairman Brown moved to go into Executive Session for two items of pending
litigation, two items of threatened litigation, and to review the Executive Session Minutes from September 12, 2013. 
Commissioners Barlow, Ognio, and Oddo seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed
unanimously.


The Board recessed into Executive Session at 8:37 p.m. and return to Official Session at 9:29 p.m.


Return to Official Session and Approval of an Executive Session Affidavit: Commissioner Ognio moved to exit
Executive Session and for the Chairman to sign the Executive Session Affidavit.  Commissioner McCarty seconded
the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit,
identified as “Attachment 29", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
September 26, 2013
Page Number 15


Approval of the September 12, 2013 Executive Session Minutes: Chairman Brown moved to approve the
September 12, 2013 Executive Session Minutes.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion
followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


ADJOURNMENT:


Additional Comments: Fire Chief David Scarbrough noted that Atlanta Shirts is the provider of the pink T-shirts,
and that he neglected to recognize them earlier.  He added that “one of his guys has a company and he needed to
get credit,” and he stated the man’s name is Werner Frye.


Adjournment: Commissioner Oddo moved to adjourn the September 26, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting. 
Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board of Commissioners adjourned the September 26, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting at 9:30 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
      Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                     Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 10th day of October 2013.


___________________________________
        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk








AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


October 10, 2013
 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of the Fayette County Forestry Commission.


PUBLIC HEARING:


2. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to approve the transfer of a 2013
Retail Beer and Wine Sales License from Michael Simpson, doing
business as Simpson Grocery, to Green Oil Company, doing business as
South Fayette Chevron, with Edward C. Wyatt as licensee, and to renew
the Retail Beer and Wine Sales License for 2014.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


3. Approval of staff’s request to authorize a one-year contract extension with
Tag Grinding Services for short-term debris removal during times of
extreme weather or declared county disaster and authorization for the
Chairman to sign the contract or related documents.  This is the final
renewal of a three-year contract.


4. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-14 amending
the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 5, International Property
Maintenance Code, Section 302.4 Weeds, to include an allowable height of
twelve (12) inches for weeds.


5. Approval of staff’s recommendation to enter into an Intergovernmental
Agreement with the City of Fayetteville for the Use of County Property,
including the sale or serving of Malt Beverages and Wine for the City of
Fayetteville Main Street events.


6. Approval of staff’s recommendation to utilize $3,500.00 from project fund
contingency to pay for additional components and labor required for the
installation and upgrade of the audio / visual equipment in the public
meeting room.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


i


STAFF


Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Dennis Davenport, Interim County


Attorney
Floyd Jones, County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
October 10, 2013
Page Number 2


7. Approval of the September 26, 2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


NEW BUSINESS:


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


ADJOURNMENT:








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Administration Floyd Jones / Pete Frisina


Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Fayetteville for the Use of County 


Property, including the sale or serving of Malt Beverages and Wine for the City of Fayetteville Main Street events.


Several Fayette County departments, including the County Clerk, Buildings and Grounds, Planning and Zoning, and the County 


Administrator, have been considering and and in discussions with Fayetteville Main Street in an effort to allow Fayetteville Main Street to 


take over the administration of events on the following county properties:  1)  Historic Courthouse Square located at 200 Courthouse 


Square) and the Fayette County Administrative Complex Parking Lot, including Heritage Park (located at 140 Stonewall Avenue West). 


 


This agreement also seeks to allow permission for Fayetteville Main Street to sell and / or serve malt beverages and wine Fayette Main 


Street events that are held the Historic Courthouse Square grounds. 


 


On October 4, 2013, the Fayetteville City Council approved the Intergovernmental Agreement under consideration.


Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Fayetteville for the Use of County 


Property including the sale or serving of Malt Beverages and Wine for the City of Fayetteville Main Street events.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


This is an example of Fayette County working with the City of Fayetteville in an effort to streamline both organizations operations (thus 


saving taxpayer's money) while authorizing the Use of County Property, including the sale or serving of Malt Beverages and Wine for the 


City of Fayetteville Main Street events.


ConsentThursday, October 10, 2013







Minutes
October 3, 2012
Page Number 3


NEW BUSINESS:


1. Fayetteville Mayor Greg Clifton and Director of Community Development Brian Wismer will discuss both
the City of Fayetteville’s Redevelopment Powers Referendum that will be voted on during the November
6, 2012 General Election, and the city’s request to allow the consumption of alcohol on the Historic
County Courthouse’s lawn when authorized for use by the city.


Director of Community Development for the City of Fayetteville discussed two issues with the Board.


The first discussion concerned the City of Fayetteville’s Redevelopment Referendum which will be voted on
at the November 6, 2012 General Election. Mr. Wismer explained what is entailed with the referendum and
answered questions from the Board.  City of Fayetteville Mayor Pro-Temp Paul Oddo informed the Board that
he could speak on behalf of the City Council when he said that the City Council supports the referendum. The
Board gave no direction and took no formal action based on this first request.


The second discussion concerned the City of Fayetteville’s request to allow the selling of alcohol on County
property for events sponsored by the City of Fayetteville.  


County Attorney Scott Bennett told the Board that if it allowed the City of Fayetteville to sell alcohol, as
requested, then the County would essentially be: 1) holding an event allowing private businesses to come in
and compete with established businesses with no established way to determine which vendors are permitted
to sell on County property, 2) allowing the City of Fayetteville to basically control when they are going to sell
alcohol at the courthouse, and 3)  opening the way for the Fayette Chamber of Commerce and the Economic
Development Authority to also sell alcohol since it deletes the prohibition against alcohol sales.  Mr. Bennett



fjones

Highlight







Minutes
October 3, 2012
Page Number 4


also cautioned that the Board needed to consider the unintended consequences of permitting the sale of
alcohol on County property.  He emphasized that by allowing the City to sell alcohol on County property, the
County would be turning over a certain amount of control of County property to the City, and the Board would
not have a decision on who was allowed to sell on County property.  Discussion followed.


The Board consented to not allow the selling of alcohol on County property as requested by the City of
Fayetteville.  Commissioner Brown dissented from the Board’s decision saying he had no problem with the
request so long as there was appropriate signage, all legal criteria would be enforced, and that there would be
no serving to minors.  The Board took no formal action based on this second request.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 4", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.



fjones

Highlight







  


 


CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 


USE OF COUNTY OWNED PROPERTY AGREEMENT 


 


 THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this ______ day of ____________, 2013 by and 
between the CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, a municipality duly incorporated in the State of Georgia, acting 
by and through its duly elected Mayor and Council, hereinafter referred to as the “City”, and FAYETTE 
COUNTY, a political subdivision in the State of Georgia, acting by and through its duly elected Board of 
Commissioners, hereinafter referred to as the “County”, for the use of certain County owned properties. 


 


WITNESSETH: 


 


 WHEREAS, the City holds events on certain County owned properties, specifically these 
properties are the Old Courthouse and Square (200 Courthouse Square) and the Fayette County 
Administrative Complex and grounds including Heritage Park (140 Stonewall Avenue West); and 


 


 WHEREAS, the City and County desire by this writing to set forth the terms of their agreement 
for the City use of aforementioned County owned properties; 


 


 NOW, THEREFORE, for an in consideration of the mutual premises contained herein, and for 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by 
both parties, both parties agree as follows: 


 


Section 1.  Legal Authority 


 


1.1 This Agreement shall constitute a biding, legal contract between the parties hereto, in 
accordance with the authority granted by Article IX, Section III, Paragraph I of the 1983 
Constitution of the State of Georgia.  Each of the parties herein covenants that it has the requisite 
legal authority to provide the services, perform the functions, and otherwise do all things 
necessary, convenient, and expedient to carry out the obligations and responsibilities herein set 
forth, either expressly or by reasonable implication. 


 
Section 2.  Consent of the County 


 
2.1  The County hereby consents to allow the City to hold and coordinate events on the 


aforementioned County owned properties through this agreement in return of the City meeting all 
stipulations set forth in this agreement.  The County has the right of first refusal on any planned 
city events or activities of any kind. 
 


Section 3.  Stipulations 
 


3.1  All applications require a two (2) week notice prior to any event being held.  The 
City shall notify and get written approval from the County Administrator or his/her designee of 
any City event not included in this agreement (See Attachment A).  Notice of event dates 
reflected in Attachment A will be provided at the beginning of each calendar year for scheduling 
purposes to the County Administrator or his/her designee. 







  


 


 3.2  The City shall provide security for any event via the Fayetteville Police Department 
and ensure coordination on such events with the county Marshal’s Department. 


 
3.3  The City shall submit a certificate of insurance for all non-City, sponsored events to 


the County Administrator or his/her designee no later than two (2) weeks prior to the event.  The 
County shall be listed with respect to general liability in the amount of $1,000,000. 


 
3.4  The City shall provide for trash collection and disposal at the event and shall remove 


all trash and litter from the County owned properties after the event. 
 
3.5  The City shall reimburse the County on an event basis for bathroom supplies (i.e. 


toilet paper, soap, paper towels, etc.) used in bathrooms of the Fayette County Administrative 
Complex based upon the cost reimbursement (See Attachment B).  Payments shall be made to the 
County on a bi-annual basis. 


 
3.6  The City shall not allow for the anchoring of tents and shade tarps that require 


driving stakes into County property. 
 
3.7  The City shall not allow anchoring tents or shade tarps by tying said items to trees, 


shrubs, or light poles in or around the aforementioned properties. 
 
3.8  The City shall consult with the County Administrator or his/her designee for any 


large structures, including large tent covers or stages, that are to be located at the aforementioned 
properties. 


 
3.9  The City shall notify the County of any special needs for electrical power, above and 


beyond what is currently provided, for the County’s review. 
 
3.10  The County shall allow the sale of malt beverages and wine at events on the Old 


Courthouse Square grounds under the following stipulations: 
 


a. The event shall be a City sponsored event; 
 


b. The City shall issue the permit for the sale of malt beverages and wine and ensure the 
vendor meets all applicable laws and regulations of the State of Georgia and Fayette 
County; 


 
c. The City will ensure that the serving and consumption area be cordoned off by a 


temporary barrier with police security at each area of ingress and egress; and 
 


d. Signs shall be posted informing patrons that they may not consume the malt 
beverages and wine outside of the cordoned area. 


 
3.11  The City shall pay the County an amount equal to twenty-five 25% of any fees 


collected for any events on County property not reflected in Attachment A.  Payments shall be 
made to Fayette County no later than thirty (30) days after any such events. 


 
3.12  The City shall administer the placement of signs at the Historic County Courthouse 


grounds. 
 
 
 







  


 


Section 4.  Indemnification. 


 
 4.1  To the extent allowed by law, the City shall indemnify the County against any losses, 
damages, judgments, interest, settlements, fines, court costs and other reasonable costs and 
expenses, including attorney fees, and any other liabilities incurred by, imposed upon, or suffered 
by the County in connection with or resulting from any claim, action, suit, or proceeding arising 
out of or in conjunction with the performance by the City of its duties and responsibilities under 
this Agreement. 
 
Section 5.  Term of Contract. 
 
 5.1  This agreement shall begin on the Effective Date as set forth on the Agreement page 
of the contract, and continue through June 30, 2014.  Thereafter, this agreement may be renewed 
by the County for one-year renewal terms (each a “Renewal Term” and together with the Initial 
Term, the “Term), which renewal will be by letter or other written correspondence from the 
County to the City sixty (60) days prior to expiration of the Initial Term or then then-current 
Renewal Term.  If the County fails to provide notice of renewal, this Agreement will terminate at 
the end of the Initial Term or the then-current Renewal Term.  This agreement is subject to the 
multi-year contractual provisions of O.C.G.A. 36-60-13(a). 
 
Section 6.  Miscellaneous. 
 


6.1  This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement of the parties.  No 
representations not contained herein have been relied upon or shall be binding upon either of the 
parties hereto.  This Agreement may not be modified except by written agreement signed by both 
parties. 
 
 IN WITNESSS WHEREOF, the City and the County have caused this Agreement to be 
executed in their respective corporate names and their respective corporate seals to be hereunto 
affixed and attested by their duly authorized officers, all as of the date first above written. 
 
       FAYETTE COUNTY 
 
 
 
            
      By:______________________________ 
 
       STEVE BROWN, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
 
       Floyd Jones, County Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







  


 


      THE CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 
 
 
 
            
      By:______________________________ 
 
                       GREG CLIFTON, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
  Anne Barksdale, City Clerk 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







  


 


Attachment A 
 


CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 


AUTHORIZED FAYETTE MAIN STREET EVENTS 


 


1. Fine Art Show on the Old Courthouse Lawn 
2. Taste of Fayette 
3. Chili Fest 
4. Pumpkin Festival/Trick or Treat on Main Street * 
5. Downtown Christmas Parade/Tree Lighting * 
6. Lunch on the Lawn / Dinner on the Lawn  
7. Fayette Market Days * 


 


All events signified with an asterisk (*) are not permitted for the sale of malt 


beverages and wine at the Old Courthouse Square grounds as provided in Section 


3. Stipulation 3.10 and subsections a-d. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







  


 


Attachment B 
 


CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 


STONEWALL INVENTORY COST REIMBURSEMENT 


 


Women’s Restroom: 


1. Rolls toilet tissue -  $3.77 
2. Multi fold packs paper towels - $ 1.35  
3. Hard roll paper towels - $2.80           
4. Bag in box soap - $3.39 


 


Men’s Restroom: 


1. Rolls toilet tissue - $3.19 
2. Multi fold packs paper towels - $1.35  
3. Hard roll paper towels - $2.80              
4. Bag box soap - $3.39 


 


 





		Administration- County Property Agenda Request File

		Administration- County Property Backup

		10-03-2012 Minutes

		Administration- County Property Backup












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Board of Commissioners County Clerk Floyd Jones


Approval of staff's recommendation to utilize $3,500.00 from project fund contingency to pay for additional components and labor 


required for the installation and upgrade of the audio / visual equipment in the public meeting room.


On April 11, 2013, the Board of Commissioners approved a mid-year budget adjustment that included $25,079.00 in order to upgrade 


and enhance the audio / visual capabilities in the public meeting room.   Sound Principles was unanimously selected to perform the 


upgrade project.  That effort has resulted in enhanced audio and visual capabilities, and now allows for Board of Commissioners 


meetings to be broadcast live from Channel 23 and to be viewed on the County's website. 


   


Staff requests authorization to utilize $3,500.00 from project fund contingency to pay for the additional components and labor required for 


the installation and upgrade of the audio / visual equipment in the public meeting room.


Approval of staff's recommendation to utilize $3,500.00 from project fund contingency to pay for additional components and labor 


required for the installation and upgrade of the audio / visual equipment in the public meeting room.


Staff requests utilizing $3,500.00 from project fund contingency to pay for remaining needs with the audio/visual upgrade.


No


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


ConsentThursday, October 10, 2013







                                                                 Sound Systems - Video Systems - Lighting Systems
P.O. No.
Bill To: Fayette County


Contact: Steve Rapson
Address: 140 Stonewall Avenue West


Fayetteville, GA 30214
 Phone: 770 305-5314


Cell:
E-Mail: Srapson@fayettecountyga.gov


Deposit Received: $0.00
Rep: Invoice Subtotal: $465.73
Load In: TBD Tax Rate: 7.00%
Performance: Labor: $0.00
Load Out: Invoice Total: $465.73
Location: Total Amount Due:


Commissioner's Chambers - Installation Additions Amount Paid:
Quantity Unit Price Amount


1 $287.78 $287.78
1 $177.95 $177.95


Customer
Subtotal $465.73


Tax $0.00
Labor
Total $465.73


JK


Fayette County Administrative Complex


Invoice #2806


                                                 Consulting - Acoustical Design - Installation


The Show Business Sound and Lighting Inc.
7576 Southlake Pkwy
Jonesboro, GA 30236
Phone: 770-477-6227
www.theshowbusiness.com
matt@theshowbusiness.com
Fax: 770-472-3727
5/20/2013


Project Name:
Description


Additional Cable/Supply Package for Podium Location Change
Additional Material for Audio/Video location change


Please visit our website - www.theshowbusiness.com


*If applicable customer to be billed for or provide  electrical needs
Signature____________________________*Prices good for 30 days


7576 Southlake Pkwy, Jonesboro, GA 30236
Phone: 770-477-6227 Fax: 770-472-3727



fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment A







                                                                 Sound Systems - Video Systems - Lighting Systems
P.O. No.
Bill To: Fayette County


Contact: Steve Rapson
Address: 140 Stonewall Avenue West


Fayetteville, GA 30214
 Phone: 770 305-5314


Cell:
E-Mail: Srapson@fayettecountyga.gov


Deposit Received: $0.00
Rep: Invoice Subtotal: $522.00
Load In: TBD Tax Rate: 7.00%
Performance: Labor: $415.46
Load Out: Invoice Total: $937.46
Location: Total Amount Due:


Commissioner's Chambers - Installation Additions Amount Paid:
Quantity Unit Price Amount


1 $99.00 $99.00


1 $162.00 $162.00


1 $261.00 $261.00


$415.46


Customer
Subtotal $522.00


Tax $0.00
Labor $415.46
Total $937.46


Please visit our website - www.theshowbusiness.com


*If applicable customer to be billed for or provide  electrical needs
Signature____________________________*Prices good for 30 days


7576 Southlake Pkwy, Jonesboro, GA 30236
Phone: 770-477-6227 Fax: 770-472-3727


Installation & Material/Cable for Video D.A. and Monitor


Jonesboro, GA 30236
Phone: 770-477-6227
www.theshowbusiness.com
Joel@theshowbusiness.com


19" LCD Monitor for Press


JK


Fayette County Administrative Complex


Fax: 770-472-3727
9/19/2013


Project Name:
Description


Shure 18" Goosneck Mic (No Switch)


Component Video Distrobution Amplifier


Estimate


                                                 Consulting - Acoustical Design - Installation


The Show Business Sound and Lighting Inc.
7576 Southlake Pkwy



fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment B





		Administration- Sound Principles Agenda Request File

		Administration- Sound Principles Backup

		FCmonitorMicDa (2)

		InstallAdditions (3)












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Code Enforcement Kathy Hobbs


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-14 amending the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 5, 


International Property Maintenance Code, Section 302.4 Weeds, to include an allowable height of twelve (12) inches for weeds.


The International Property Maintenance Code 2006 was adopted by Fayette County on December 3, 2008.  There was a blank space to 


be filled in with an allowable height for grass/weeds.  That space was left blank.   


 


In order to prosecute this section of the code, a  height limit must be adopted and staff recommends twelve (12) inches.


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-14 amending the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 5, 


International Property Maintenance Code, Section 302.4 Weeds, to include an allowable height of twelve (12) inches for weeds.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


ConsentThursday, October 10, 2013







STATE OF GEORGIA 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


  


ORDINANCE NUMBER 2013-14 


   
  AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, 


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA TO AMEND CHAPTER 5 BUILDINGS, GENERAL 


FEES ARTICLE 1, ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT; TO PROVIDE FOR 


CODIFICATION; TO PROVIDE FOR SERVERABILITY; TO PROVIDE FOR 


PENALTIES; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN 


ADOPTION BY DATE; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER 


PURPOSES ALLOWED BY LAW: 


 


  Whereas, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board 


of Commissioners thereof; 


   


  Whereas, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides 


for the adoption of construction codes as required by the State of Georgia, 


 


  Whereas, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, 


Georgia shall be improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this ordinance. 


 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY 


AUTHORITY THEREOF: 


 


Section 1. Part of the Fayette County Code, is hereby amended by adding “12 inches”  as the 


allowable height found  in Chapter 3 of the International Property Maintenance Code, code section 


number 302.4 “WEEDS” of the Code of Ordinances, Fayette County, Georgia to read as follows: 


 


Sec5-4 Adoption of Construction Codes ; sub section J ; International Property Maintenance Code 


(ICC) 


 


302.4 Weeds.  
 


All premises and exterior property shall be maintained free from weeds or plant growth in excess of 


12 inches. All noxious weeds shall be prohibited. Weeds shall be defined as all grasses, annual plants and 


vegetation, other than trees or shrubs provided; however, this term shall not include cultivated flowers and 


gardens. 


 


Upon failure of the owner or agent having charge of a property to cut and destroy weeds after service of a 


notice of violation, they shall be subject to prosecution in accordance with Section 106.3 and as prescribed 


by the authority having jurisdiction. Upon failure to comply with the notice of violation, any duly 


authorized employee of the jurisdiction or contractor hired by the jurisdiction shall be authorized to enter 


upon the property in violation and cut and destroy the weeds growing thereon, and the costs of such 


removal shall be paid by the owner or agent responsible for the property. 


 


 


Section 2 That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby incorporated 


by reference as if fully set out herein. 


 


Section 3  a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all 


Sections, paragraphs, sentences clauses, and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their 


enactment, believed by the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and 


constitutional.  



javascript:Next('./icod_ipmc_2006f2_1_par033.htm');





b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest 


extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


ordinance severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to 


the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this article 


is mutually dependent upon any other section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this article. 


 


c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this article shall, for any 


reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid 


judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction. It is the express intent of the Board of 


Commissioners that such invalidity, unconstitutionality, or unenforceability shall, to the greatest 


extent allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the 


remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, or unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable 


any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to 


the greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and 


Sections of the Article shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect.  


 


Section 4. All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith 


are hereby expressly repealed. 


 


Section 5. The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise 


specified herein.  


 


IT IS SO ORDAINED THIS 10
TH


 DAY OF OCTOBER 2013 


 


      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


 


 


      ______________________________ 


      Steve Brown, Chairman 


 


ATTEST: 


 


______________________ 


Floyd Jones, Clerk 


   


   





		Code Enforcement - Ordinance 2013-14 - Agenda Request File

		Code Enforcement - Ordinance 2013-14 - Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Code Enforcement Kathy Hobbs


Consideration of staff's recommendation to approve the transfer of a 2013 Retail Beer and Wine Sales License from Michael Simpson, 


doing business as Simpson Grocery, to Green Oil Company, doing business as South Fayette Chevron, with Edward C. Wyatt as 


licensee, and to renew the Retail Beer and Wine Sales License for 2014.  


Mr. Michael Simpson has been advised that his lease of Simpson Grocery Store has expired, and he has chose not to renew his alcohol 


license.  Green Oil Company owns the property and has decided to transfer the business to their company. 


 


This request is to transfer the 2013 Retail Beer and Wine Sales License from Mr. Michael Simpson to Green Oil Company, with Mr. 


Edward C. Wyatt as the licensee.  This request is also to renew the Retail Beer and Wine Sales License for 2014. 


 


All paperwork is complete and meets the requirements in the ordinance.


Approval of staff's recommendation to approve the transfer of a 2013 Retail Beer and Wine Sales License from Michael Simpson, doing 


business as Simpson Grocery, to Green Oil Company, doing business as South Fayette Chevron, with Mr. Edward C. Wyatt as licensee, 


and to renew the Retail Beer and Wine Sales License for 2014.  


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Public HearingThursday, October 10, 2013









		Code Enforcement-Alcohol Tran...ocery-Agenda Request File

		Code Enforcement-Alcohol Transfer Simpson Grocery-Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Steve Brown


Recognition of the Fayette County Forestry Commission.


The Georgia Forestry Commission (GFC) is a dynamic state agency responsible for providing leadership, service and education in the 


protection and conservation of Georgia's forest resources. Their headquarters is located in Dry Branch, Georgia. District and county 


offices are located throughout the state. 


 


The forestry unit in Fayette County is located at 137 Corinth Rd in Newnan, GA and responds to Coweta, South Fulton & Fayette 


counties.  The unit covers a total of 327,074 forested acres with 34,219 of that being forested acres in Fayette County.  Fayette is still 


27% forested. 


 


Forest Rangers routinely promote the protection of Fayette forest lands through educational programs to adults and children, talks to civic 


groups and homeowners associations.  There was 8 hours invested and 275 people reached through three programs.


Recognition of the Fayette County Forestry Commission.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


The Forestry Commission's mission is to provide leadership, service and education in the protection and conservation of Georgia's forest 


resources.


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, October 10, 2013







Recognition  
 


Fayette County Forestry Unit  


Whereas,  The Georgia Forestry Commission is a dynamic state agency responsible for providing 


leadership, service and education in the protection and conservation of Georgia's forest 


resources, with headquarters in Dry Branch, Georgia, and with district and county offices 


positioned throughout the state, including a forestry unit located at 137 Corinth Road in 


Newnan, Georgia; and  


Whereas, The Forestry Unit in Newnan provides services for Fayette, Coweta, and South Fulton counties 


and covers a total of 327,074 forested acres with 34,219 of that being forested acres in Fayette 


County; and 


Whereas,  By utilizing the media, individual contacts, and three forestry educational programs, the Fayette 


County Forestry Unit continues to educate and inform the public, including 275 students and 


adults who are participating in the educational programs, with over one-thousand brochures, 


literature, posters, and promotional materials distributed to the public; and 


Whereas,  A staff of foresters assists landowners with cost sharing and conservation programs assistance 


through federal programs, provides forest health information, education, and training, and offers 


directories for consulting foresters, forestry service contractors, timber buyers, arborists, and 


Christmas trees and pine straw producers ; and 


Whereas,  The Fayette County Forestry Unit sold approximately 1,420 seedlings to residents of the county 


for personal and commercial use; and  


Whereas,  In the years 2005, 2011 and 2012, the Georgia Forestry Commission recognized the Fayette 


County Forestry Unit as GFC Northern Unit of the Year; and 


NOW, THEREFORE, WE THE FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSSIONERS hereby recognizes The 


Fayette County Forestry Unit for their commitment to providing services that encourage the vision of 


healthy, sustainable forests that provide clean air, clean water and abundant products for future generations. 


 


So proclaimed this 10th day of October 2013 


 


         BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
         FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
         
         
 
              
         Steve Brown, Chairman 





		Commissioners- Georgia Forest...ssion Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Georgia Forestry Commission Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Fire and Emergency Services David J. Scarbrough


Approval of staff's request to authorize a one-year contract extension with Tag Grinding Services for short-term debris removal during 


times of extreme weather or declared county disaster and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract or related documents.  This 


is the final renewal of a three-year contract.


On October 13, 2011, the Board of Commissioners approved Bid #790 for short-term debris removal during times of extreme inclement 


weather or declared county disaster to low bidder, Tag Grinding Services.  The contract with Tag Grinding Services was for one year with 


the ability to be extended twice for additional one-year terms each.  On October 11, 2012, the Board of Commissioners authorized the 


first one-year extension.  Staff is requesting the Board to authorize the second and final extension of the contract with Tag Grinding 


Services for another twelve months.  


 


In the past years during previous considerations, several benefits were identified in having this contract in place: 1)  the time required to 


develop the bid, receive vendor responses, and award the bid is greatly reduced during the time critical in post-event operations; 2) Tag 


Grinding Services will be in the county and prepared to operate within four hours; 3) the bid development process included all the 


municipalities within Fayette County; 4) Each municipality has the ability to engage Tag Grinding Services at their own expense for 


events that could have an isolated impact and provide a means for rapid recovery; 5)  Tag Grinding Services has communicated with the 


Purchasing Department that the second year of the two-year extension is available to the county as the current contract cost as bid in 


2011; and 6)  Fayette County would not be subject to any cost increase by rebidding this service, and this extension will benefit in cost 


savings for the County's municipalities as well.


Approval of staff’s recommendation to extend the contract of Tag Grinding for the final year as stipulated in the contact with the current 


pricing to remain in place as per the contract. 


Funding is based on the nature and extent of the extreme inclement weather or declared county disaster.  Tag Grinding Services has 


communicated that it will extend the current contract bid cost as first approved in 2011.


Yes Thursday, October 11, 2012


No Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


This is an example of Fayette County working together with its municipalities in providing for the immediate assistance for all of Fayette 


County's citizens in the event of inclement weather or declared county disasters.


ConsentThursday, October 10, 2013















 


To:  Steve Rapson 


From:  Ted L. Burgess 


Date:  September 27, 2013 


Subject: Bid #790 Second Extension – Short Term Debris Removal 


In the event of a disaster – whether natural or man-made – the county must be prepared to 
respond as quickly as possible.  Toward this end, the count entered into a contract with Tag 
Grinding Services, Inc. two years ago, in coordination with the Cities of Fayetteville, Peachtree 
City, Tyrone, Woolsey, and Brooks. 
 
When disaster strikes, the county can contact Tag Grinding for immediate emergency debris 
clearing from public roadways and public access areas.  Tag Grinding has committed to be here 
within four hours of receiving the call.  The scope of work does not include debris clearing from 
any private property unless specifically authorized and directed by the Fayette County 
Emergency Management designee. 
 
No costs are incurred under this contract unless the county notifies Tag Grinding to mobilize.  At 
that point, Tag Grinding charges the county an hourly rate for each piece of equipment used.  
The hourly rate includes the operator and all other charges.  The contract includes a not-to-
exceed amount of $210,000. 
 
If the President declares a state of emergency, the county may become eligible for some 
amount of federal reimbursement funding for expenditures under the contract related to life, 
safety, or protection of property.  Tag Grinding has extensive experience doing this type of work, 
and understands FEMA requirements that must be met in order to qualify for any federal FEMA 
grant funds that might be available for a particular emergency.  As a matter of context, it is my 
understanding that there have been four federally declared states of emergency in the county in 
the last 24 years, with the most recent being Hurricane Opal which occurred in October, 1995. 
 
In response to Invitation to Bid #790 in 2011, six companies submitted bids (please see 
attachment).  Tag Grinding was the low bidder, and was awarded the contract effective October 
27, 2011.  Language in the contract allows two 12-month extensions, with the approval of both 
parties.  The Board of Commissioners approved the first extension at the meeting of October 
11, 2012.  Fire / EMS recommend exercise of the second extension, and Tag Grinding has 
agreed to maintain the original prices.  I support their recommendation. 
 
Attachment 







EQUIPMENT
HOURLY 


RATE TOTAL
HOURLY 


RATE TOTAL
HOURLY 


RATE TOTAL HOURLY RATE
HOURLY 


RATE TOTAL
HOURLY 


RATE TOTAL
Excavator - small 3 $92.00 $276.00 $75.00 $225.00 $115.00 $345.00 $60.00 $180.00 $123.00 $369.00
Excavator - medium 6 $105.00 $630.00 $100.00 $600.00 $145.00 $870.00 $80.00 $480.00 $156.00 $936.00
Excavator - large 4 $125.00 $500.00 $140.00 $560.00 $175.00 $700.00 $115.00 $460.00 $195.00 $780.00
Rubber Track Dozer 5 $125.00 $625.00 $120.00 $600.00 $110.00 $550.00 NON-RESPONSIVE* $95.00 $475.00 $162.00 $810.00
Rubber Track Loader 3 $85.00 $255.00 $95.00 $285.00 $110.00 $330.00 $95.00 $285.00 $162.00 $486.00
Motor Grader/Motor Patrol 7 $120.00 $840.00 $125.00 $875.00 $90.00 $630.00 $100.00 $700.00 $162.00 $1,134.00
Skid Steer Loader 2 $85.00 $170.00 $55.00 $110.00 $70.00 $140.00 $50.00 $100.00 $110.00 $220.00
Trash Pump – 6” (for flood relief) 3 $119.08 $357.24 $25.00 $75.00 $45.00 $135.00 $30.00 $90.00 $39.00 $117.00
Trash Pump – 8” (for flood relief) 2 $147.26 $294.52 $30.00 $60.00 $65.00 $130.00 $50.00 $100.00 $65.00 $130.00
Trash Pump – 12” (for flood relief) 2 $222.80 $445.60 $60.00 $120.00 $85.00 $170.00 $75.00 $150.00 $110.00 $220.00
Tandem Axle Dump Truck 12 $78.00 $936.00 $72.00 $864.00 $75.00 $900.00 $55.00 $660.00 $110.00 $1,320.00
Single Axle Dump Truck 15 $74.00 $1,110.00 $48.00 $720.00 $65.00 $975.00 $35.00 $525.00 $97.00 $1,455.00
Lighting Unit 20 $18.00 $360.00 $20.00 $400.00 $25.00 $500.00 $25.00 $500.00 $39.00 $780.00
Individual laborers - (non equipment 
operators) 30 $32.00 $960.00 $46.00 $1,380.00 $40.00 $1,200.00 $30.00 $900.00 $37.00 $1,110.00
Debris Removal Truck - (truck with a 
hydraulic arc with a claw) 10 $165.00 $1,650.00 $105.00 $1,050.00 $95.00 $950.00 $125.00 $1,250.00 $162.00 $1,620.00
Street Sweeper 25 $95.00 $2,375.00 $40.00 $1,000.00 $50.00 $1,250.00 $50.00 $1,250.00 $100.00 $2,500.00
Chain Saw 50 $3.00 $150.00 $10.00 $500.00 $15.00 $750.00 $10.00 $500.00 $8.00 $400.00


Evaluation Overall Totals


EQUIPMENT


TONNAGE 
FOR 


EVALUATION 
PURPOSES 


ONLY
TONNAGE 


RATE TOTAL
TONNAGE 


RATE TOTAL
TONNAGE 


RATE TOTAL TONNAGE RATE
TONNAGE 


RATE TOTAL
TONNAGE 


RATE TOTAL
Roll Off Container 100 $52.00 $5,200.00 $25.00 $2,500.00 $29.00 $2,900.00 $15.00 $1,500.00 $52.00 $5,200.00


*White-Meadows was determined to be non-responsive.  While they submitted a bid, they bid prices on equipment that was not as specified in the Invitation to Bid.


TAG GRINDING 
SERVICES, INC.


YOUNG'S GENERAL 
CONTRACTING 


INC.
WHITE-MEADOWS 


TREE SERVICE


HOURS FOR 
EVALUATION 


PURPOSES 
ONLY


$10,105.00 $19,587.00$11,924.00$17,134.36 $13,425.00


$14,387.00$11,934.36 $10,525.00 $8,605.00$9,424.00


BID #790 SHORT TERM DEBRIS CLEARING - TALLY SHEET


                            RESPONDENTS: 
CERES 


ENVIRONMENTAL 
SERVICES, INC.


NORTH GEORGIA 
CONCRETE, INC.


RHINO SERVICES, 
LLC.





		Fire and EMS- Tag Grinding Agenda Request File

		Fire and EMS- Tag Grinding Backup

		10 10 13 Fire & ES Memorandum     Tag Grinding Services

		Tag Grinding Services - Purchasing Backup 1

		Tag Grinding Services - Purchasing Backup 2

		Totals







